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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date. :

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsmthtues
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director’s report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to
report in this regard. ANDT
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

5. The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and
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Independent Auditor’'s Report fo the members of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure |l wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company, as detailed in note 33 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

iv.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
47(e) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
47(f) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons
or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reascnable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

%W/

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

UDIN: 23507892BGXQVT3114

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20 May 2023
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

202

3.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment and right of use assets have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In
our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in note 2a to the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment including Right of Use assets
or intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and
rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during

(iii)
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the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working

capital limit in excess of Rs 50.00 million by banks based on the security of current assets. The
quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the
Company with such banks and such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company for the respective periods, which were not subject to audit/review.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(iii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (cont'd).

a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(vii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of | Nature Gross Amount Period to | Forum where | Remarks,
the of dues | Amount | paid which the | dispute is | ifany
statute () in | under amount pending
million Protest (¥)in | relates
million
Income Income 5.31 5.31 FY 2017-18 | Commissioner | -
tax law tax of Income tax

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

{d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary Company.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (cont’d).

placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (@) To the best of our knowiedge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xi) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

{(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board
of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (cont’d).

(i)

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than
ongoing project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Tarun Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 507892 (755

UDIN: 23507892BGXQVT3114

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20 May 2023
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Annexure 1i to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Maxcure
Nutravedics Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited (‘the Company')
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement criteria established
by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’'s business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Maxcure
Nutravedics Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {cont’d)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

B

Tarun Gupta
Partner

UDIN: 23507892BGXQVT3114

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20 May 2023
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MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts in E millions uniess otherwise stated)

N As at As at
Farticulan Nots 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, ptant and equipment 2a 308.27 260.12
(b) Right-of- use assets 44 40.37 46.36
(c) Capital work-in-progress 2b 21.13 0.66
(d) Intangible assets 2a - -
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments 3 - “
(i) Others financial assets 4 12.00 8.91
() Non-current tax assets (net) 5 6.18 37.37
(g) Other non current assets 6 2.97 0.87
Total non-current assets 390.92 354.29
(2) Current assets
(@) Inventories T 877.67 627.93
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 1,590.08 2,155.26
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 37.13 14.14
(c) Other current assets 10 128.10 104.82
Total current assets 2,441.98 2,902.15
Total assets 2,832.90 3,256.44
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) Equity share capital 1 0.50 0.50
(b) Other equity 12 956.35 895.60
Total equity 956.85 896.10
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 1.03 695.80
(i) Lease liabilities 44 18.69 23.12
(iii) Other financial liabilities 13 14.14 2.51
(b) Provisions 14 12.52 11.50
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 16.31 17.20
Total non-current liabilities 62.69 750.13
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 370.46 635.85
(ii) Trade payables 17
(A) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 31.92 2573
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and :
small enterprises 1,364.73 915.06
(iii) Lease liability 43 4.43 3.61
(iii) Other financial liabililies 18 24,16 18.43
(b) Other current liabilities 19 16.05 11.06
(c) Provisions 20 0.82 0.47
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 21 0.79 -
Total current liabilities 1,813.36 1,610.21
Total equity and liabilities 2,832.90 3,256.44
Summary of significant accounling policies and other explanatory information 1-47
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MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ millions unfess ctherwise stated)

. Year ended Year ended
Sl How 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
INCOME
l.  Revenue from operations 22 6,516.04 5,803.20
Il.  Other income 23 16.95 7.99
lll. Total income (I+i) 6,532.99 5,811.19
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 875.97 1,143.07
Purchase of stock-in-trade 4,986.66 4,253,20
Change in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 24 17.93 (232.89)
Employee benefils expense 25 22566 212.48
Other expenses 26 209.55 265.12
IV. Total expenses 6,325.77 5,640.98
V. Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA) 207.22 170.21
(l1-1v)
Finance costs 27 91.86 59.04
Depreciation and amortisation 2&44 34.78 26.92
VI. Profit before exceptional items and tax 80.58 84.25
VIl. Exceptional items 43 - (140.00)
VIII. Profit/ (loss) before tax (PBT) (VI- Vi 80.58 (55.75)
IX. Tax expense: 39
Current income-tax
Current year 21.88 22.52
Previous year 0.17 (1.20)
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge (1.22) 1.02
Total tax expenses 20.83 22.34
X Profit/ (loss) for the year (VIII-IX) 59,75 (78.09)
Xl Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit liability 1.34 (0.82)
Less: Tax effect on above (0.34) 0.20
Other comprehensive income/ (loss), net of tax 1,00 (0.62)
XIl. Total comprehensive income (X+XI) (comprising of profit for the year and other 60.75 (78.71)
comprehensive income for the year)
XIll. Earnings per equity share
(Face value Z 10 (31 March 2021: ¥ 10) each)
Basic and diluted 28 1,194.94 (1,561.82)
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MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323
Statement of change In equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  millions unless otherwise staled)

a) Equity share capital

Particulars

Na. of shares Amount

As at 1 April 2021 50,000 0.50
Changes in equity share capital . -
As at 31 March 2022 50,000 0.50
Changes in equity share capilal - -
As at 31 March 2023 50,000 0.50
b) Other equity

. Other equity
Rarticulacs Retained earnings Total
As at 1 April 2021 974.31 974.31
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.62) (0.82)
Loss for the year (78.09) (78.09)
As at 31 March 2022 / 1 April 2022 895.60 895,60
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1.00 1.00
Profit for the year 59.75 59.75
As at 31 March 2023 956.35 956.35

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
This is the statement of change in equity referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in & millions uniess otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities

(Loss)/ profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Dimunition in the vaiue of long-term invesiments
Finance costs

Interest income

Bad debts

Allowance for expected credit loss
Operating Profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for movement in working capital changes
Inventories

Trade receivables

Financial assets

Other financial assets-non current

Other assets

Trade payables

Other liabilities

Cther financial liabilities

Provisions
Cash flow (used in) operations (gross)

Direct taxes paid
Net cash flow generated/(used in) from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in-
progress, capilal advances and payable towards property, plant and equipment)

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment

Proceeds from redemplion of / (investment in) current investments

Investment in deposits having original maturity of more than 3 months

Interest received

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayments from non-current borrowings (net)
Froceeds/ (repayment) of current borrowings (net)
Payment of lease liabilities

Interest paid
Net cash flow (used in)/ generated from financing activities (C)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of year

(This space has been intentionally left biarnk)

80.58 (55.75)
34.78 26.92
- 140.00
91.85 59.04
’ (0.33)
0.33 8.21
(0.08) (0.39)
207.46 177.70
(49.74) (129.81)
555,94 (1,538.86)
- 1.82
(3.09) 10.36
(22.57) 48.59
455 85 2665.04
4.99 (2.88)
12.66 (2.99)
2.71 1.48
1,164.22 {1,168.55)
9.93 (27.18)
117415 {1,195.73)
(95.70) (20.69)
0.18 0.78
- 0.01
- 11.97
i 0.33
(95.52) (7.60)
5,535.73 4,028.33
(6,230.50) (3,330.53)
(265.39) 48935
(5.37) (2.01)
(90.10) (59.71)
(1,055.63) 1,123.43
22.99 (79.90)
14.14 94.04
37.13 14.14




MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74893DL1994PLC057323

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ miflians unless otherwise staled)

Components of cash and cash equivalent are as below:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance with scheduled banks
in current accounts 37.04 13.96
Cash on hand 0.09 0.18
37.13 14.14

Note 1: The above cash flow slatement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method' as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statemerit of cash flows’,
Note 2: Disclosures as required in terms of Amendment to Ind AS 7 'Statement of cash flows' related to the change in financial liabilities arising from financing activity

Particulars _Lea_s.e Curre.nt Non-cul_'rent Total
liabilities borrowings borrowings
Net debt as on 1 April 2021 ; - 146.50 - 146.50
Cash flows :
Repayments (2.01) 489.35 (3,330.53) (2,843.19)
Proceeds - - 4,026.33 4,026.33
New leases 28.74
Balance as on 31 March 2022 26.73 635.85 695.80 1,329.64
Cash flows
Proceeds - - 5,535.73 5,535.73
Repayments (5.37) (265.39) (6,230.50) (6,501.26)
Non cash items
Interest on lease payment 1.76 - - 1.76
Balance as on 31 March 2023 23.12 370.46 1.03 365.87
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 1-47
This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered-Accountants Maxcure Nutravedics Limited

Fim/n Registration No.001076N/N500013

flui W 2

fafi.gr\Gupta S hitaswa Parveen Soni
P&r’tjrge\ O Director Director
Mehgérshipjc.suiasz DIN: 06724730 DIN: 00332902
e A L) =
B
K. D. Sh Nidhi Sharma
Place : New Delhi Director Director
Dale : 20 May 2023 DIN: 02942552 DIN: 03170443




MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED
CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

1
11

1.2

13

a)

b)

Company overview and summary of significant accounting policies

Company overview

The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Pharmaceulical products. The Company foliows a business modal of contract manufacturing i.e. goods manufactured
for ather customers under their brand names. The Company is a limitsd Company (deemed public) incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office
at Delhi, India. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticais Limited,

The financial statemens for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resalution of the Board of Direclors on 20 May 2023,

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Saction 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {"Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convertion basis excepl for certain financial assels and liabilities which are measured at fair
value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwsen markel parlicipants at the
measurement date.

The financial stalements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is also its functional currency and all amounls disclosed in the financial
stalemenls and noles have been rounded off to the nearesl two decimals in million as per the requirement of Schedule Il to the Acl, uniess otherwise slated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operaling cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division [l
of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of producls and the time betwesn acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operaling cycle as 12 months for the purpese of current or non-current classifisation of assels and
liabilities,

The Company has prepared the financial slalements on the basis that it will conlinue to operale as a going concern,

Overall considerations
The financial stalements have been prepared using the significant accounting poficies and measurement bases summarised below. These accounting policies
have been used throughout all periods presented in the financial slalements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Minisiry of Corporale Affairs ("MCA') nolifies new standard or amendments to the exisling standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. MCA, vide its circular dated 31 March 2023 has issued Companies (Indian Accaunling Slandards) Amendment Rules, 2023 to further
amend the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as below:

= Ind AS 1: Requirement to disciose ‘malarial accounting policies' instead of ‘significant accounting policies’ and related guidance included to determine whether
the palicy is material or not. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact on its financial statements,

* Ind AS B: Definition of ‘accounting estimates' now inciuded in the standard enabling distinction between change in accounting estimates from change in
accounting policies. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impacl on its financial stataments.

* Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 101: Transactions that does nol give rise to equal laxable and deduclible temporary differences at the time of initial transaction have now
been included in the exemplions for recognition of deferred tax liability and deferred tax assets in case of taxable temporary differences. The Company does not
expect the amendments to have any impact on its financial slatements.

* Ind AS 101: New guidance added for deferred tax related to leases and decommissioning, resioralion and similar liabilities, The Company does not expect the
amendments to have any impact on its financial stalemerits, The Company doss nol expect the amendments to have any impact on its financial statements,

Use of judgment, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial staiements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, eslimales and assumptions thal affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of essels, liabilities, income, expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that are reported and disclosed in
the financial stalements and accompanying noles, Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Judgemenits, estimates and assumplions

These eslimates and judgmenl are basad on the managemenl's best knowledge of current events, hislarical experience, aclions that the Company may underiake
in the future and on various other estimates and judgments that are beiieved fo be reasonable undsr the circumsiances. Existing circumstances and asstimplions
about future developments, howsver, may change due to markel changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
refiected in the assumplions when they oceur. The judgements and key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources for eslimaling uncertainty at the
reparling date, that have a significant risk of causing a malerial adjusiment to the carrying amounls of assels and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below,

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assels requires assessment of several extarmnal
and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverabie amount of the assets,

Useful lives of depreciablefamortisable assets — Management reviews its eslimale of the useful lives of depreciablefamorlisable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the asssls. Uncerainties in these eslimates reiale to technical and eccnomic obsolescence that may change the utility of
Company's assels.

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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Provisions and contingent liabilities - The Company is the subject of legai proceedings and tax issues covering a range of malters, which are pending in various
jurisdictions. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matiers, it is difficult to predict the final outcome of such matlers, The cases and claims against the Company
often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues, which are subjact to many uncerlainties, including but not limited to the facls and circumstances of each
particular case and claim, the jurisdiction and the diffsrences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, managemenl consults with legal counsel and
cerlain other sxperts on mallers relaled to litigalion and taxes. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is prabable and the
amount of the less can be reasorably eslimated. In the circumstances, when the outcome is not probable, company accounts for that as a conlingent liability.

Employee benefits — Management’s estimale of the employee benefils is based on a number of eritical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of infiation,
morlality, discount rate and anticipation of future saiary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significanlly impact the employee benefits amount and the
annual defined benefit expenses,

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cosl of acquisition. The cost comprises the purchase price and any aliributable costs of bringing the assst ta its
working candifion for its intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the assel's
Cartying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as appropriale, only when it is probable that future economic benefils altributable to such subsequent cost
associaled with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance cos!s are recognised in statement of profil or less as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method. The following useful life of assels has been taken by the Company:

Asset class Useful Lives
Buildings 30 years
Plant and equipments 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vehicles 8/10 years
Office equipments 5 years
Compulers 3/6 years
Research and development equipments 10 years
Electrical Installations 10 years
Pollution control equipments 15 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been mads to any assel, or whers any asset has been sold, discarded, demoiished or destroyed, or significant
companents replaced, depreciation on such assets is calculaled on a pro rala basis as individual assels with specific useful life from the month of such addition or,
as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced.

Advances paid lowards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheel dale is ciassified as capilal advances under other non-
current assats and the cost of assals not put to use before such date are disclosad under ‘capilal work-in-progress’,

De-recognition

An item of properly, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are
expecled from its use or disposal. Any gain or less arising on de-recagnition of the asset (calculated as the difference betwasn the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the stalemant of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assels acquired ssparalely are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recogrition, intangible assels are carried al cost less any
accumulzted amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent measurement (amorlisation)

All intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitaiised costs are amortised on a slraight-line basis over their estimaled useful lives, The
estimaled useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factars inciuding the effects of cbsalescence, demand, compelition, and other
economic faclors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of mainlenance expenditures required to oblain the
expecied future cash flows from the assst.

The cost thereol is amorlised over a period of 4- 5 years. The amortisation period and the amortisalion methad for intargible assels are reviewad at least at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the expecled useful life or the expected patlern of consumplion of fulure economic benefits embodied in the assel are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriale, and are lreated as changes in accounling estimales.

Revenue expenditure on research is recognised as expense in the year in which it is incurred and are included with the respeclive nature of account heads in the
slatement of profit and loss.

Capital expenditure on research is shown as addilion to property, piant and equipments and depreciation is compuled in @ manner preseribed for praperty, plant
and equipmenls.

De-recognition
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an inlangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the slatement of profit and loss when the assel is derscognised,

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank)
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Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognisad when the Company becomes a parly to the cortractual provisions of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value
adjusted for transaction costs, excepl for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value.

If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognilion differs from the transaction price, the Company accounts for that instrument at that date as
foilows:

at the measurement basis mentioned above if thal fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an aclive markel for an identical assel or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valualion technique that uses only dala from observable markels, The Company recognises the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.

in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction
price. After inilial recognition, the Company recognises that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the extenl that it arises from a change in a factor (including
time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.
Non-derivative financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assats are classified into the following calegories upon initial recognition:

Financial assets at amortised cost — a financial instrument is measired at amorlisad cost if both the following conditions are met:

The assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold asse!s for coliecling contractual cash flows, and

Conlractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are soiely paymenis of principal and inleresl (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial asse!s are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets at fair value

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset whan the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel expire, or it lransfers the righls to recsive the
conlractual cash fiows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor relains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain conlrol of the financial asset. If the Company
enters into transactions whereby it ransfers assels recognised on its balance shesat, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assels are not derecognisad.

Non-Derivative financial liability:-

Subsequent measurement
After initital recognition, the financial liabilities are subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (EIR).

Amarilsed cosl is calculaled by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and lees or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The effect of EIR
amorlisation is included as finance cost in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derscognises a financial liability when its conlractual obligations are discharged or canceiled or expire. The Company also derscognises a financial
liability when its lerms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substanlially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified lerms is recognised at fair value. The difference betwsen the carrying amount of the financial liability exlinguished and the new financial liability with
madified lerms is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assels and financial liabilities are offsel and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intenlion to sellie on a net basis to reaiise the assels and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recsived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel participanls at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the prasumption that the lransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participanls would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
markel participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a markel participant's ability to gensrate economic benefils by using the asset in its highest
and besl use or by selling it to anather market participant that would use the assel in its highest and bes! use,

The Company uses valualion techniques that are appropriale in the circumstances and for which sufficient dala are available to measure fair value, maximizing the
use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial results are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole:

Level 1 — Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly obsarvable.

Level 3 — Valualion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unabservable

For assels and liabilities that are recognized in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, Company delermines whether transfers have occurred betwaen levels
in the hierarchy by re-assessing calegorizalion (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporling period or each case.

For he purpos= of fair value disclosures, Company has delermined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assat
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained abave.

Impairment of financial assets
All financial assets excepl for thoss at FVTPL are subjecl to review for impairment at least at each reporting dale to idenlify whether there is any objeclive evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assels is impaired, Differant crileria to determing impairment are applied for each ealegory of financial assels.

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) modz| for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assels
carried at amortised cost.

ECL is the weighled average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective inlerest rale, with the respeclive risks of default occurring as the weights. When
estimaling the cash flows, the Company is required to consider —

All contractual terms of the financial asse!s (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assals.
Cash flows from the saie of callateral heid or other credit enhancements that are infegral to the contractual terms,

Trade receivables
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) madel for measurement and recognition of impairment loss, the calculation of which is
based on historical dala, on the financial assels that are (rade receivables or canitract revenue receivables and all lease receivables.

The Company wriles off lrade receivabies afler it is esiablished beyand doubt that the account is uncolleclible. Financial assets that are writen-off are still subject
to enforcement activity by the Company.

Other financial assets

For recognilion of impairment loss on other financial asse's and risk exposire, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition, If the credit risk has nol increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amouint equal
to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifelime expecled credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring aver the expected life of the financial asset. To make that
assessmenl, the Company compares the risk of a default cecurring on the financial asset as at the baiance sheel dale with the risk of a default aceurring on the
financial asset as at the dale of initial recognilion and considers reasonable and supporiable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company sssumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significanlly since initial recognifion if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheat dala.

Impairment of non-financial assets
For impairment assessment purposes, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash generaling units). As a
result, some assets are tesled individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generaling unit level.

At each reporting dale, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on inlernaifexlernal factors, that an assel may be impaiied. If any such
indication exists, the Company eslimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash
generaling unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced lo its recoverable amount and the reduction is reated
as an impairment loss and is recognised in the stalement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amaunt is reassessed which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use and the assel is refiecled at
the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of deprecialed historical cost, Impairment losses previously recognised are accordingly reversed in the statement of
profit and loss.

To determine value-in-use, management estimales expected future cash flows from each cash-generaling unit and determines a suitable discount rate in order to
calculale the present value of those cash flows, The dala used for impairment tesling procedures are directly linked to the company latest approved budget,
adjusted as necessary to exciude the effects of future re-arganisations and asset enhancements. Discount faclors are determined individually for each cash-
generating unit and reflect currenl markel assessment of the lime value of money and assel-specific risk factors,
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1.13

1.14

.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assels

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past evenls, it is probable that an outflow of resources embaodying economic
benefits will be required to selile the obligation, and when a reliable estimale of the amount of obligation can be made at the reparting date. These estimales are
reviewed af each reporling date and adjusted to refiect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to
reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate that refiects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligatian,
When provisions are discounted, the increass in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Contingenl liability is disclosed for:
Passible obligations which will be confirmed only by future evenls nol wholly within the control of the Company or

Presenl obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setlie the abligation or a reliable estimate of the
amoiint of the obligation cannol be made.

Contingent assels are not recogriised. However, when inflow of economic benefils is probable, related assel is disclosed.

Operating expenses
Operaling expenses are recognised In stalemant of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

. Initial recognition

The Company's financial slalements are presented in Indian Rupes {'INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are
recarded on initial recognition in the functional currency at the exchange rales prevailing on the date of the transaction,

. Measurement at the balance sheet date

Foreign eurrency monetary ilems of the Company, outslanding at the balarice shest date are restated at the year-end rates. Non-monetary ilems which are carried
at hislorical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the dale of the transaction, Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are transialed using the exchange ralas at lhe date when the fair value is determined,

Treatment of exchange difference
Exchange differences that arise on seltlement of manetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet dals of the Company’s monelary items at the closing rale
are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculaled by dividing the net profit or loss for the period altributabie to equity sharehoiders (affer deducting attribulable taxes) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighied average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for evenls including a bonus issus,

For the purposa of calculating diluted earmings per share, the net profit or less for the period attributable to equity sharehoiders and the weighled average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive poleriial equity shares.

Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax essets and liabilities are measured at the amount expacted 10 be recovered from or paid to the laxation authorities, The 1ax rates and lax laws
used to compite the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted in India, at the reparting dale.

Current income Lax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax ilems are recognised in correlafion to the underlying lransaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Managsment periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable lax regulations are subject lo interpretation and establishes provisions where approprigte.

Deferred tax

Deferred lax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and fiabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of
unused lax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable lemporary differences or there is convircing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax assel can be realised,

The Company's ability to recover the deferred tax assels is assessed by the management at the close of each financial year which depends upon the forecas!s of
the future results and taxable profils that Company expects to eamn within the period by which siich brought forward losses may be adjusted against the laxable
profits as governed by the Income-tax Act, 1981. Deferred tax assels — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reparling date and are recognised/
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probabie respeciively that the refated lax benafit will be realised,

Deferred tax is measured at the lax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the assel is reaiised or the liabiity is seltled, based on the laws that have
been enacled or substanlively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred lax refiecls the tax consequences thal would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or selile the carrying amount of its assets and liabilifies.

Deferred tax assets and liabililies are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset defarred lax liabilities and assets, and they reiate to income laxes levied

by the same tax authority on the same taxable enlity, or on differsnl lax enlities, but they infend to settle deferred tax liabilities and asse!s on a net basis or their tax
assels and liabilities will be realised simultaneously,

(This space has been inlentionally left blank)
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Employee benefits
The Company provides post-employment benefits through various defined confribution and defined benefit plans:

Defined confribution plans

The Company's conlribution to providenl fund and pension fund is considered as defined cantribution plan and is charged as an expense as they fall due based on
the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the emplayees. The Campany has no legal or conslruclive obligation to pay
contribution in addition (o its fixed contribution.

Defined benefil plans - unfunded

The defined benefit plans sponsored by the Company define the amount of the benefit that an employee will receive on compietion of services by reference to
length of service and last drawn saiary. The legal obligation for any benefils remains with the Company.

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit pian. The liability recognised in the financial statements in respect of graluity is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporling dale, together with adjustments for unrecognisad actuarial gains or losses and past service costs.
The defined benefit obligation is caleulated at or near the reporting date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Acluarial gains and losses arising from pasl experience and changes in actuarial assumplions are crediled or charged to the statement of OCI in the year in which
such gains or losses are determined,

Other lang-term emplayee benefils - compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed mare than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of
an actuarial valuation perfarmed by an independsent actuary using the projected unit credit method,

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumplions are crediled or charged to the statement of profit & loss in the year
in which such gains or losses are detarmined.

Short-term employee benefits

All employss benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services (such as, salaries, wages, short-lerm compensated ahsences, performance
incentives, sxpected cost of bonus, ex-gratia, elc) are classified as short-term employee benefits. Expense in respect of short-term smployee benefils is
recognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employae.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transaclions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operaling cash receipls or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operaling, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregaled.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and bank deposit with banks where original maturity is
three months or less,

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories include raw malerial, stock-in-lrads, slores and spares, finished goods, work in progress and packing material.
Inventaries are slaled at lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost in respsct of the various ilems of inventory is computed as under:

(i) Raw materials and packing malerials and stock-in-trade are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, these items are considered to be realisable
at cost if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expeciad to be soid at or above cost. The cosl includes direct expenses and is delermined on the
basis of weighled average method.

(ii) Stores and spares - at cost or net realisable value, whichever is less. Cost is compuled on weighted average basis.

(iif) Work in progress - includes the cost of raw materials, packing malerials, an appropriale share of fixed and variable production overheads as applicable and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,

(iv) Finished goods - includes the cost of raw malerials, packing maleriais, an appropriale share of fixed and variable production overheads as applicable and other
cos!s incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,

For the goods which are received subsequent to balance sheet dale but for which the Company is obliged to pay, the Company books thosa as goods in transit.

Net realisable value is the eslimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expenses, Provision for expired stock and slow
moving inventory is made based on managemenl's best eslimales of net realisable value of such inventories.

Revenue recognition .

Ind AS 115 five step model is used to delermine whether revenue should be recognised at a point in time or over time, and at what amount is as below:
* Step 1: Idertify the conlract with the customer

« Step 2: Identify the perfarmance obligalions in the conlract

+ Slep 3: Detarmine the ransaction price

» Step 4: Allocate the Wransaclion price lo the perfarmarnce obligations

* Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation,

Revenue is recognised upon lransfer of conlrol of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that refiects the consideration which the Company
expacls to receive in exchange for those products or services,

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when conlrol is transferred to the customer (usually on dispatch of the goods from the factory)
which coincides with the performance obligation under the conlract with the customer,

- Revenue from services is recognized in accordance with the terms of contract when the services are rendered and the refated costs are incurred,

Revenue is measured based on the lransaction price, which is the consideralion, adjusted for discounls, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in
the conltract with the custamer.

Revenue also axcludes goods and service lax (GST) collected from cuslomers, since GST not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is coliecled

tax on value added to the commodity/services by the seller, on behalf of the government and, thersfore, thess are not economic benefils flowing to ma/c_‘,_umpapy.
- e

Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. Revenue from the sale of goads is net of returns.

o Ag X
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1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

Other income
Other income is comprised primarily of inlerest income, exchange gainfloss on transiation of other assets and liabilities and insurance claim sto.

Interest
Interest income is recognised as and when due on the time proportion basis by using effective inferest method. Interest income is included under the head "“other
income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Government grants

Govemment granls are recognised where there is reasonable assurance thal the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be compiied with, When
the grant relales to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a syslemalic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is infended to
compensals, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounls over the expected useful life of the reiated assal,

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly atlributable to the acquisition, conslruction or production of an assel that necessarily fakes a substantial period of time to gel ready for its
intended use or sale are capilalised as part of the cosl of the asset. All olher borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of inlerest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cosl also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Compariy’s leass assel classes primarily cansist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a confract contains a lease, at inceplion of
a confract, A conlracl is, or conlains, a leass if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel for a period of lime in exchange for
consideralion, To assess whether a conlract conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified assel, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (ji) the Company has subslantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset thraugh the period of the lease and (jii) the Company
has the right to direct the use of the assel.

At the dale of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (FROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lesses, excepl for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Cornparny recognizes the lease payments as an operaling expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Cerlain lease arrangements Includes the oplions to extend or terminate the leass before the end of the lease tarm. ROU assets and lease liabilities inciudes these
options when it is reasanably cerlain that they will be exercised,

The right-of-use assels are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the leasa liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to
the commencement dale of the lease plus any initial direct cosls less any lease incentives. They are subsequenily measured at cost less accumulated amorlisation
and impairment losses, if any,

Right-of-use assets are amortised from the commencement dale on a slraight-line basis over the shorler of the lease term or useful life of the underlying assel.
Right of use asse!s are evalualed for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicale that their carrying amounts may nol be recoverable.

The lease liability is initially measured at amartized cost at the prasent value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rales. Leass liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the reiated right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a lermination apfion,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separalely presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows,

Segment reporting

Operaling segmenls are reporled in a manner consistent with the internal reparling provided to the chief operaling decision maker. The Company operates in a
single segment of production of pharmaceuticals and relevanl disciosure requirements as per Ind AS 108 "Operaling Segmenls” have been disclossd by the
Company under note no 40.

The board of directors of the Company has been identified as being the chief operaling decision maker by the management of the Company.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

The Company presents EBITDA in the slalement of profit and loss; this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The term EBITDA are not defined in Ind AS. Ind AS
compliant Schedule 1l allows companies to present line items, sub-line ilems and sub-tolals shall be presented as an addition or substitution on the face of the
Financial Stalements when such presentation is refevant to an understanding of the company's financial position or performance or to cater to industry/sectar-
specific disclosure requiremenls or when required for compliance with the amendments to the Companies Acl or under the Indian Accounting Standards.

Measurement of EBITDA
Accordingly, the Company has elected to present earmings before interest, tax, deprecialion and amarlization (EBITDA) as a separale line item on the face of the

stalement of profit and loss, The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss). In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and
amortisation expense, finance costs and lax expense.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  millions unless otherwise slaled)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

3. Investments

A. Investments in equity instrument
Investment in subsidary (measured at cost), Unquoted, Trade
Medibox Pharma Private Ltd. (formely known as Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limited)

231,172 (31 March 2022: 231,172) equity shares of Z 10 (31 March 2022: % 10) each fully paid 240.00 240.00
Less: Provision for dimunition in long-term investments (Refer note 43) (240.00) (240.00)
Aggregale amount of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of provision for dimunition in investmentls 240.00 240.00

4, Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 11.50 8.41
Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months* 0.50 0.50
12.00 8.91

*pledged with bank and government autharities
Refer note 37 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses respectively.

5. Non-current tax assets (net)

Income Tax (net of provisions) 6.18 37.37

6.18 37.37

6. Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances 250 0.53
Other receivable 0.47 0.34
2.97 0.87

7. Inventories
(refer note 1,17 in respect of mode of valuation of inventories)

Raw malerials

on hand 269.44 197.08

in transit 240 6.41
Packing malerials

on hand 43.00 45,80

in transit 0.15 0.02
Work-in-progress 1277 31.86
Finished goods 18.25 32.50
Stock-in-trade

on hand 311.67 307.49

in transit 11.23 -
Stores and spares

on hand 8.76 6.77

677.67 627.93

Refer note 29 for information on Inventory pledged as security by the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ millions unfess otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

8. Trade receivables

Considered good - unsecured 1,599.08 2,155.26
Creditimpaired 0.92 1.01
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses (0.92) (1.01)
1,599.08 2,155.26
Due from related party (refer note 36) 837.80 1.556.92

Refer note 37 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses respectively.

Refer nole 45 (a) for details in respect of ageing of trade receivables.
The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

in current accounts 37.04 13.96
Cash on hand 0.09 0.18
37.13 14.14

Refer note 37 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assels measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses respectively.

10. Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to suppliers and others 70.01 40.60
Balances with statutory authorities 52.57 61.55
Others* 5.52 2,67

128.10 104.82

*Includes CSR asset of € 1.79 millions (previous year nil) (refer note 41)

(This space has been infentionally left blank)
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MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED
CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in T millions unless otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at
Arueuiar 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

11. Equity share capital

Authorised

250,000 (31 March 2022: 250,000) equity shares of 10 (31 March 2022 ; %10) each 2.50 2.50

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) equity shares of 10 (31 March 2022: ¥ 10) each 0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50

11.1 There has been no change in the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period,

11.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of ¥ 10/- per share, Each equity shareholder is entitied to one vote per share.

In the event of winding up of the Company, the equity sharehoiders shall be entitled to be repaid remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts, in the ratio of the amount of capital paid upon such equity shares. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently.

11.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company and shares held by Holding Company *

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
P ical e
Akums Drugs and harmaceuticals 50,000 {564 " .

Limited and its nominees #

# promoters of the Company. There has been no change during the year in the number of shares held by them from the preceding year
*As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

11.4 No shares have been issued as bonus shares or issued for consideration other than cash or bought back during the period of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date.

11.5 No shares have been reserved for issue under options.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T millions unless otherwise slated)

Particulars Asat Aset
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

12. Other equity
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 895.60 974.31
Profit/(loss) for the year 59.75 (78.09)
Other comprehensive income

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax. 1.00 (0.62)
Balance at the end of the year 956.35 895.60

Nature and purpose of reserve
Retained earnings
The retained earnings represents the undistributed surplus of the Company earned from its business operations and includes other comprehensive

income on actuarial gain/ loss arising on account of defined benefit plan.
13. Other financial liabilities

Security deposit received

from customers 2.38 1.85
from others 11.76 0.66
14.14 2.51

14, Provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 34) 9.68 9.21
Compensaled absences (refer note 34) 2.84 2.29
12.52 11.50

15. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liabilities comprises:

Temporary differences of book and tax depreciation 20.54 20.44
Lease liabilities - 0.39
20.54 20.83

Deferred tax assets comprises:
Provision for doubtful debts 0.23 0.25
Items that are tax deductible on payment basis 4.00 3.38
4.23 3.63
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16.31 17.20

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  millions unless otherwise stated)

: As at As at
P |
articulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
16. Borrowings
Non Current
Loan from refated company (refer note 16.2) 1.03 695.80
Current
Working capital loan from banks (including accrued interest) (refer note 16.1) 370.46 635.85
371.49 1,331.65
Notes :-
Balance outsanding

16.1 Working capital loan from banks 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
186(i) Working Capital loan from Citi Bank Limited 250.00 330.00
Working Capital loan taken from CIT| Bank Limited is secured by hypothecation(pari passu) of
stocks,current assets and mortgaged of movable assals and immovable assets and carries an
interest rale in the range of 4.00% to 7.60% p.a. (4.00% p.a.to 4.20% p.a in previous year) and is
repayable after minimum 7 days to maximum 180 days
16(ii) Working Capital loan from Yes Bank Limited - 130.44
Working Capital loan taken from Yes Bank Limited is secured by hypothecation(pari passu) of
stocks.current assets and morigaged of movable assets and immovable assets and carries an
interest rate in the range of 4.00% to 7.20% p.a. (4.00% to 4.20% p.a in previous year) and is
repayable afler minimum 7 days to maximum 180 days
16(iii) Working Capital loan from HDFC Bank Limited 120.42 150.25
Working capital loan taken from HDFGC Bank Limited is secured by hypothecation(pari passu) of
stocks,current assets and mortgaged of movable assets and immovable assets and carries an
interest rale in the range of 4.20% to 7.60% p.a (4.00% to 4.50% p.a in previous year) and is
repayable after minimum 7 days to maximum 180 days
16(iv) Cash Credit from Citi Bank Ltd
Cash credit facility taken from CIT| Bank Limited is secured by hypothecation(pari passu) of

. : : - 2499
stocks,current assets and mortgaged of movable and immovable assets and carries an interest
rate in the range of 7.20% to 9.20% p.a. (8.05% to 10.15% p.a. in previous year)
16(v) Cash Credit from IDFC Bank Ltd 0.04 0.17
Cash credit facility taken from IDFC Bank Limited is secured by hypothecation(pari passu) of
stocks,current assets and mortgaged of movable assets and immovable assets and camies an
interest rate of 9.25% p.a. (9.5% p.a. in previous year)

370.46 635.85

Refer nole 29 for pledged against borrowing facilities.

16.2 The loan from related party include the unsecured loan taken from holding Company carrying an interest rate of 7% p.a. from Arpil 2022 to
Nov 2022 and interest rate of 7.5% p.a. from Dec 2022 to Mar 2023 (previous year : 8% p.a.) and is repayable in December 2026, if any.

The above loans have been utilised as per the purpose for these loans were sanctioned. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of interest
during the current financial year. Further, there have been no default in repayment of loan and no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-
bearing loans and borrowing in the current year. -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies an
(All amounts in ¥ millions unless otherwise stated)

d other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

17.Trade payables

Tolal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micr

(refer note 37 and 42)

Due to related party (refer note 36)

0 and small enterprises

Refer nole 45(b) for disclosure in respect of ageing of the above payables.

18. Other financial liabilities
Employee payable

Capital creditors

19.0ther current liabilities
Advance from customers

Other payables
Statutory dues

20.Provisions
Provision for employee henefits

Gratuity (refer note 34)
Compensaled absences (refer note 34)

21. Current tax liabilities(net)

Provision for tax (net of advance tax)

Total

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

31.92 25.73
1,364.73 915.06
1,396.65 940.79

14.62 54.60

13.40 12.36

10.76 6.06

24.16 18.43

12.92 9.58

3.13 1.48
16.05 11.06
0.55 0.19
0.27 0.28
0.82 0.47
0.79 -
0.79 -




MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED

CIN- U74899DL1994PLC057323

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ milfions uniess otherwise slated)

. Year ended Year ended
s 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
22, Revenue from operations
Sale of finished products 1,200.71 1,401.13
Sale of traded products

Domestic 5,228.39 4,324.07
Sale of others 0.01 0.23
6,429.11 5,725.43
Other operating revenues
Job work income 59.06 62.48
Testing charges and olhers 19.25 7.32
Sale of scraps 8.62 7.97
6,516.04 5,803.20
Refer Note 35 in terms of disclosures required under Ind AS 115
23. Other income
Interest income on bank deposits at amortised cost - 0.33
Interest income on tax refund and others 268 -
Subsidy income 0.01 0.01
Gain on foreign exchange transactions and translations - 4.12
Reversal of expected credit Ioss on trade receivables 0.09 0.39
Miscellaneous receipts 14.17 3.14
16.95 7.99
24, Change In inventory of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Opening stocks
Finished goods 32.50 26.84
Work-in-progress 31.86 18.26
Stock-in-trade (including transit) 307.49 93.85
(A) 371.85 138.95
Less: Closing stocks
Finished goods 18.25 32.50
Work-in-progress 12,77 31.86
Stock-in-trade (including transit) 322.90 307.49
(B) 353.92 371.84
Change in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress (A-B) 17.93 (232.89)
25, Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 212.26 201.51
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 34) 5.79 5.03
Staff welfare expenses 7.61 5.94
225.66 212,48

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ millions uniess otherwise Stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

26. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Power and fuel
Rent (refer note 44)
Repair and maintenance
Plant and equipments
Buildings
Others
Insurance
Travelling expense
Conveyance
Fees and subscription
Legal and professional expenses
Loss on foreign exchange transactions and transiations
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Bad debts writlen off
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 41)
Payment to auditors (Refer note 32)
Miscellaneous

27. Finance costs

Interest expense

on working capital from bank

on unsecured loan from holding Company
Interest expense on lease liability
Interest on income-tax

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)

24.94 25.76
57.11 58.02
12.09 6.06
11.97 10.28
12.74 3.74
17.65 12.74
2,73 3.14
0.91 0.31
0.93 0.40
1.92 1.24
5.84 122.52
42.52 -
0.77 -
0.33 8.21
3.67 3.24
1.08 0.91
12.35 8.55
209.55 265.12
34.10 13.61
56.00 45.40
1.76 -
= 0.03
91.86 59.04




MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ millions unless atherwise staled)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

28. Eaming per equity share

Eamings per share (EPS) as per Ind AS-33 is calculated as under:

Net profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS(T) (A) 59.75 (78.09)
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year (nos. in milions) 0.05 0.05
Weighled average number of equity shares in calculaling basic and diluted EPS (nos. in millions) (B) 0.05 005
Basic and diluted EPS (%) (A/8) 1,194.94 (1,561.82)
29. Assets pledged as security (refer nole16)
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Inventories 677.67 627.93
Other bank balances 050 0.50
Trade receivables 1,529.08 2,155.26
Total current assets pledged as security 2,277.25 2,783.69
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment 308.27 260.12
Total non-current assets pledged as security 308.27 260.12
Total assets pledged as security 2,585.52 3,043.81

30. Reporting to banks

The Company is regular in submission of quarlerly stock statements with banks for the borrowings sanclioned against hypothecation of current assets.

Further, all the quarlerly stalements of current assels filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with books of accounts.

31. Capital and other commitments

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capilal account and not provided for{net of
advances)

32. Payment to auditors

933

456

. As at As at
I
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- as auditor 092 0.88
- for reimbursement of expenses 0.16 003
1.08 0.91

33. Contingent liabilities and litigations
(i) Claim against the Company, not acknowledged as a debt.

Income-lax matters (refer note a and b below) 511 5.31

a) During the year, for the A.Y. 2018-19 a demand of T 5,11 millions was raised upen the Company by way of intimation under section 143(2) of Income

Tax Act on account by reducing the amount of deduction claimed w/s 80IC for the income arise from

the operations of Haridwar unit, against which an

appeal has been filed by the Company before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), New Delhi. Based on the discussion with legal counsel, the
Company believes that there is a fair chance of favorable decision in this casa. Therefore, no provision is considered necessary against the same.

b) During the previous year, for the A.Y. 2018-19 a demand of T 0.20 millions was raised upen the Company by way of intimation under section 143(1) of
Income Tax Act on account of disallowance of expenditure u/s 36(1)(va) in respect of credit towards provident fund, against which an appeal has been
filed by the Company before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), New Delhi. During the current year, CIT(A) has passed its order daled

20/12/2022, partially allowing the expense of ¥ 0.246 milions. Remaining amount of ¥ 0.204 millions disallo

have accepted the disallowance and made provision for tax against such disallownace in current reporting period.

wed by CIT(A) (out of  0.45 millions). We

i) Pursuant to judgement by the Hor'ble Supreme Court of India dated 28 February, 2019, it was held that basic wages, for the purpose of provident
fund, should include cerlain allowances which are common for all employees. The company has assessed possible outcomes of the judgement based on
discussions with internal counsel and beiieves that the ruling would be applicable prospectively and accordingly the management has naot provided for .
liability arising, if any for the past periods. Further, the management believes that it is compliant, in all malerial aspects, with all the relevant slatutory i
requirement for the curment year, Accordingly, the Company believes that this matter will not have any material adverse impact on the financial position of ./ EAE R
R
L 1]
//‘{

the Company. The Company will, however, conlinue to monitor and evaluate its position based on future evenis and developments. Pl /

o W Y\\M\_z
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MAXCURE NUTRAVEDICS LIMITED
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amaunts in & millions uniess otherwise Slated)

34, Employees benefits obligation

A. Defined contribution plan

Relirement benefits in the form of provident fund, superannuation fund and Empioyee State Insurance Scheme are defined contribution schemes, The

Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to provident fund. The Company conlribution to the defined plans is:

The amount recognised as expense towards contribution to defined contribution plans for the

year is as below:

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Company's conlribution to Provident Fund 0.34 0.40
Company's conlribution to Employees' Stale Insurance Scheme 4.99 463
Total 5.33 503

B. Defined benefit plan - gratuity

The Company has defined benefit graluity pian for its employees where gratuity is computed as 15 days last drawn salary,
service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on refirement /lermination fresignation. The benefil vests on
years of service. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asseUiability in the books of accounts on the basis of a

projected unit credit method. Summary for the same is as below:

(i) Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year

for every completed year of
the employee compleling 5
cluarial valuation as per the

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Non-current 968 9.21
Current 0.55 0.19
10.23 9.40

(ii) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 9.40 7.18
Current service costs 1.95 1.69
Interest costs 0.67 0.49
Benefits paid (0.46) (0.78)
Acturial loss/(gain) on obligation (1.34) 0.82
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 10.23 9.40
(iii) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists of:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current service cost 1.95 1.69
Inlerest costs 0.67 0.49
Net impact on profit before tax 2,62 2.18
Acluarial loss/{gain) recognised during the year in other comprehensive income (1.34) 0.82
Amount recognised in tolal comprehensive income 1.28 3.00

(iv) Breakup of acturial gain/(loss)

Actuarial (gain)loss from change in demographic assumption

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Actuarial (gain)loss from change in financial assumption (0.23) (0.51)
Acluarial (gain)loss from experience adjustment (1.11) 1.33
Tolal actuarial (gain)/loss (1.34) 0.82
(v} Actuarial assumptions
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.36% 7.18%
Rale of increase in compensation levels 5.50% 5.50%
Attrition rate:
Upto 30 years 3% 3%
from 31-44 years 2% 2%
Above 44 1% 1%
Reliremenl age 58 58
Mortality rate IALM(2012-14) IALM(2012-14)
Notes:

(a) The discount rale is based on the prevailing market yietd of Indian Government bonds as at the balance sheet date for the eslimated terms of

obligations,

(b) The estimales of future salary increases considered takes inlo account the Infiation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

|

A /
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in & millions unless otherwise stated)

(vi) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

a) Impact of the change in

Present value of obligation at the end of the period 10.23

Impact due to increase of 0.50% (0.62)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.68

b) Impact of the change in

Present value of obligation at the end of the period 10.23

Impact due to increase of 0.50% 0.69

Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.64)
Note:

9.40
(0.61)
0.67

.40
0.68
(0.62)

The above sensilivity analysis is based on a change an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and
changes in some of the assumplions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defind benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumplions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting

pesiod) has been applied which was applied while calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet,

(vii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (discounted)

Within next 12 months 0.55 0.19
Between 1-5 years 0.67 0.73
Beyond 5 years 9.01 8.48

10.23 9.40
(viii) Expected contribution
The expected future employer conlributions for defined benfit plan ¥ 3.07 millions as at 31 March 2023 [31 March 2022: ¥ 2.71 million].
(ix) Other long-term employee benefits
An amount of ¥ 1.00 millions [31 March 2022: 2 0.95 million] pertains to expense towards compensaled absences,
35. Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of manufaciured goods- Pharmaceulicals 1,200.71 1,401,113
Revenue from traded goods- Domestic 5,228.39 4,324,007
Revenue from sale of goods - others 0.01 0.23
Other operating revenue
Job work income 59.08 62.48
Testing charges 19.25 7.32
Sale of scrap 8.62 7.97

6,516.04 5,803.20

(i) Assets and liabilities refated to contracts with customers
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Contract liabilities related to sale of goods
Advance from cuslomers - 12.92 - 9.58

Receivable is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, Conlract liability is the entity's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a cuslomer for which the enlity has received consideration from the customer in advance. The amounts receivable from cuslomers
become due after expiry of credit perind which on an average is less than 30 days. There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the

cuslomers,

(i) Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

The change in conlract assets is on account of amount charged from sale of goods and the amount outstanding at year end while there is no makpr

change in the conlract liabilities during the year:
As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities

e Advances from customers Advances from customers
Opening balance 9.58 5.48
Addition during the year 12.92 9.58
Revenue recognised during the year 9.58 5.48
Closing balance 12.92 9.58

The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are for a short duration. There are no

conlracts for sale of services wherein, performance obligalion is unsalisfied to which transaction price has been allocated,

e N\t
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ millions unless otherwise stated)

36. Related party disciosures in accordance with Ind AS 24

I. Relationships

a) Holding Company
- Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

b) Subsidiary Company
- Medibox Pharma Privale Limiled (formerly known as 'Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limited')

c) Key management personnel (KMP) of the Company or its Holding Company

Name Designation
Mr. Khayali Dutt Sharma Wholetime director
Mr. Rohitaswa Wholetime director
Mr. Parveen Soni Director
Ms. Nidhi Sharma Director
Ms. Geetanjali Sharma Company Secretary

d) Promoters of holding company & their Relatives
Mr. Sanjeev Jain KMP of Holding Company
Mr. Sandeep Jain KMP of Hoiding Company
Mr. D.C. Jain Relative of KMP of Holding Company
Mrs. Lata Jain Relative of KMP of Holding Company
Mrs. Archana Jain Relalive of KMP of Holding Company
Ms, Arushi Jain Relative of KMP of Holding Company
Mr. Kanishk Jain Relative of KMP of Holding Company
Mr. Umang Jain Relative of KMP of Helding Company
Mr. Manan Jain Relative of KMP of Holding Company

e) Fellow subsidiaries*
Pure and Cure Healthcare Privale Limited
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited
Akums Lifescience Limited
Akums Healthcare Limited
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP
Akumentis Healthcare Limited
Unosource Pharma Limited
Amazing Research Laboratories Limited
May and Baker Pharmaceuticals Limited
Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited
Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited
Nicholas Healthcare Limited
Burroughs Welcome Pharmacia Private Limited
AVHA Lifesciences Private Limited (till 28th February 2023)
Delcure Lifesciences Limited (fill 18th January 2023)
Akum Impex LLP (till 30th September 2022)

f) Other related party - KMP of Holding Company having substantial control*
Cure Sure Pharma (Dissolved on 31 March 2022)

) Entity controlled by KMP/Holding Company having substantial interest of the Holding Company
Akums Health and Education society
AUSL Pharma
*with whom the Company had transactions during the current year or previous year

(This space has been infentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ millions unless otherwise stated)

Ii Summary of related party transactions

Particulars

Total

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

(a)| Transactions during the year

Inter-corporate loan receipt
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

Inter-corporate loan repaid
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

Interest paid on Inter-corporate loan
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

Sales of goods

Akums Lifesciences Limited

Malik Lifesciences Private Limited

Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Pure & Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Others

Sales of assets

Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Cure Sure Pharma

Others

Purchase of goods

Malik Lifesciences Private Limited

Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Akums Lifesciences Limited

Upadhrish Reserchem LLP

Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Others

Purchase of assets

Pure & Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited

Purchase of MEIS License Fees
Unosource Pharma Limited

Malik Lifesciences Private Limited

Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

Expenses incurred on behalf of Company
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Akumentis Healthcare Limited

Others

Expenses paid by other group Company
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Others

5,538.18

6,230.50

56.00

1,453.97
1,252.01
958.73
821.82
59.00

0.20

0.01

24.44
32.67
27.26
17.11
9.42
0.33

0.38
0.66
0.02

0.93

0.18
0.01

0.02

7.32
0.69

4,026.33

3,380.50

45.40

425.00
1,625.33
1,232.43

773.21

61.31

0.59
0.14

13.46
15.47
20.70
32.48
44.21

0.64

0.04

0.02

15.96
0.73
4.20
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other ex

(All amounts in  millions unless otherwise stated)

Summary of reiated party transactions

planatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Total

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Stores & Spare parts Consumed
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP

Legal and professional expenses
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Akums Lifesciences Limited

Miscellaneous expenses
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP
Others

- |Repairs and maintenance- Plant and machinery

Upadhrish Reserchem LLP

Service Income

Akums Lifesciences Limited

Malik Lifescience Limited

Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Pure & Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Others

CSR contribution paid
Akums Foundation

Rent paid

Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Akums Healthcare Limited

Akome lifecare Private Limited

Mr. Sandeep Jain

Ms. Lata Jain

Professional charges paid
Mr. D.C. Jain

Remuneration paid*
Mr. K.D Sharma

Mr. Rohitaswa

Ms. Geetanjali Sharma

Sitting fees
Ms. Nidhi Sharma

Mr. Parveen Soni

0.01

16.64

20.44
13.35
9.70
8.85
0.31

5.47

8.65
0.60
1.97
0.36
0.34

0.72

2.43
2.53
0.44

0.01
0.01

5.50
13.18

54.50
60.00

0.08
0.01

1.04

3.22

4.86
0.53
0.36
0.34

0.72

2.22
2.43

0.01
0.01

“does not include the post employment benefits as it is been considered for the Company on a whole

Y2
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T millions unless otherwise stated)

Il Summary of related party transactions

Particulars Total
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(b)|Baiance outstanding at the year end

Inter corporate loan payable
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited - 692.33

Trade receivables

Akums Lifesciences Limited 307.42 324,13
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited 21717 929.19
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited 177.97 287.49
Pure & Cure Healthcare Private Limited : 128.70 8.30
Others 6.54 7.81

Advances from customer
Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited 1.17 -

Trade payables

Akums Lifesciences Limited 5.63 18.11
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited 3.32 25.70
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP 3.83 0.1
Pure & Cure Healthcare Private Limited 0.78 9.07
Others 1.06 1.61

Interest payables
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited 1.03 3.47

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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37 Financial Instruments

A Financial assets and liabilities

The accounting classification of each calegory of financial instruments, and their carmying amounts, are set out below:

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Other financial assels 4 12.00 8.91
Trade receivables 8 1,599.08 2,155.26
Cash and cash equivalents 9 37.13 14.14
Total 1,648.21 2,178.31
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Borrowings 16 370.46 63585
Other financial liabilities 13418 38.30 20.94
Trade payables 17 1,396.65 040.79
Total 1,805.41 1,597.58

B Fair values hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in nole (A) above has been classified into three calegories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoled prices in aclive markels for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements] and lowest priority to unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements].

The categories used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active markel;

Level 2: Directly (i e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a net asset value or valuation mode] based
on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from ohservable current markel lransactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available markel data.

There are no financial assets which are measured at fair value in the stalement of financial position and hence no disclosure on fair value hierarchy has been provided.

B.2 Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

As at_31 March 2023 Level Carrying value Fair value Reference
Financial assets
Other financial assels 3 12.00 12.00 refer note 'a'
Trade receivables 3 1,592.08 1,590.08 refer note 'a'
Cash and cash equivalents 3 37.13 3713 refer note 'a'
Financial liabilities
Lease Liability 3 18.57 18.57 refer note 'b'
Borrowings 3 370.46 370.46 refer note 'b'
Other financial liabilities 3 38.30 38.30 refer note 'a’
Trade payables 3 1,396 65 1,396 65 refer note 'a’
As at 31 March 2022 Level Carrying value Fair value Leve]
Financial assets
Other financial assets 3 891 8.91 refer note 'a'
Trade receivables 3 2,155.26 2,155.26 refer note 'a'
Cash and cash equivalents 3 14.14 14,14 refer note 'a'
Financial liabilities
Lease Liability 3 6.11 6.11 refer note 'b’.
Borrowings 3 635.85 635.85 refer note 'b*
Other financial liabilities 3 20.94 20.94 refer nole 'a’
Trade payables 3 940.79 940.79 refer note 'a’'

(a

to same as their fair values.

(b) Allthe long term borrowing facilities availed by the Company are fixed rate facilities whi

to the fixed rale of inlerest on these facilities, hence fair value is not significantly differe

-~

s

The carrying amount of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assels, trade payables and other financial liabilities which are short term in nature are considered

ch are not subject to changes in underlying interest rate indices. Current borrowing rate is similar
nt from the carrying value,
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C Financial Risk Management

Risk Management

The Company's aclivilies expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Com pany's Board of Directors has overall respansibility for the establishment ard oversight
of the Company's risk management framework, This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related
impact in the financial slalements.

e Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management |

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade recelvables and Ageing analysis, Credit ralings Bark deposits, diversification of asset base, credit
other financial assels measured at amortised cost limils

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availabilty of commitied credit lines and

borrowing facilities

Markel risk - foreign exchange Recogrised financial liabilities not dencminated in Cash flow forecasting Forward foreign exchangs contracts
Indian rupee (INR)

Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Negotiation of terms that refiect the market

factors

The Company's risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the Company) under policies approved by the board of direclors. The board of direclors
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment
of excess liquidity,

C.

-

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure fo credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, loans and olher financial assels measured at amortised cost. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other
counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.

(a]

Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system, Internal credit raling is performed for each class of financial instruments with different
characieristics, The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumplions, inputs and faclors specific to the class of
financial assets,

(i) Low credit risk

(i) Moderate credit risik

(iii) High credit risk

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a defaull on a financial asset is considered when the counter parly fails to make payments within the agreed
time period as per conlract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss expetience and considering differences between current and histarical economic
conditions,

Assels are writlen off when thers is no reasonable expecialion of recovery, such as a deblor declaring bankruplcy or a litigation decided against the Company. The Company
corlinues to engage with parlies whose balarces are writlen off and aflempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statement of profit and loss,

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Basis of categorisation Asset class exposed to credit risk Provision for expected credit loss
Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, financial assels measured at amortised cost 12 month expected credit loss
Maderate credit risk Trade receivables Trade recaivables - Life time expected credit loss

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk —

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Low credit risk
Cash and cash equivalents 37.13 14.14
Other financial assels 12.00 8.91
Maoderate credit risk
Trade recsivables 1,592.08 2,155.26
Total 1,648.21 2,178.31

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit risk refated to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposils is managed by only accepling highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different
banks across the country.

Trade receivables

of customers defaulting against credit sales made. Outstanding irade receivables are regularly monilored by credit monitoring Company. In respect of trade recsivables, the
Company recognises a provision for lifelime expected credit losses afisr evalualing the individual probabilties of default of its customers which are duly based on the inputs
received from the marketing teams of the Company.
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(b) Expected credit losses for financial assets
(i) Financial assets (other than trade receivables)

Company provides for expected credit losses on loans other than trade receivables by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit lbsses,

- For cash & cash equivalents and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with only high-rated barks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash and cash
equivalents and other bark balances and bank deposits is evaluated as very low.

- For loans and other financial assels - Credit risk is evaluated based on Company knowledge of the credit worthiness of those parties and loss allowance is measured, For
such financial assets, the Company policy is to provide for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provide for lifetime expected credit losses upon
sigrificant increase in credil risk.

31 March 2023

Gross carrying Expected Expected credit Carrying amount

amount probability losses net of loss

of allowance
Cash and cash equivalents 3713 0.00%| - 37.13
Other financial assets 12.00 0.00% - 12.00

31 March 2022 Gross carrying Expected Expected credit Carrying amount
amount probability losses net of loss
of allowance
default

Cash and cash equivalents 14.14 0.00% - 14.14
Other financial assels 8.91 0.00% - 891

(i) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Com pany considered the individual probabilities of default of its financial asssts (other than Irade receivables) and determined
that in respect of counterparlies with low credit fisk, no default evenls are considered to be possible within the 12 months after the reporling date. In respect of trade
receivabies, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifelime expected credit losses using a simplified approach,

As at 31 March 2023 Gross carrying % of Allowance for expected Carrying amount
amount expected credit [osses net of loss
credit losses allowance
Amount not yet due 1.025.10 0.00% - 1,025.10
Between one to six manth overdue 209956 0.00% 200.95
Between six month to one year overdue 360.25 0.00% 350.25
Grealer than one year overdue 3.68 -25.00% (0.92) 2.76
Total 1,599,99 (0.92) 1,599.08
As at 31 March 2022 Gross carrying % of Allowance for expected | Carrying amount
amount expected credit losses net of loss
credit losses allowance
Amount not yet due 825.85 0.00% - 826.85
Between one to six month overdue 1,254.70 0.00% - 1,254.70
Between six month to one year overdue 70.27 0.00% - 70.27
Greater than one year overdue 4.44 -22.75% (1.01) 3.43
Total 2,156.27 {1.01) 2,155.26
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:
Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade receivables
Loss allowance as at 1 April 2021 1.40
Charge in statement of profil and loss 1.01
Release 1o slatement of profit and loss (1.40)
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2022 1.01
Charge in statement of profit and loss 0.92
Reirase to statement of profil and loss (1.01)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 0.92

(This space has been infentionally left blank)
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C.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settied by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company epproach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilifies when they are due.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account

the liquidity of the markel in which the enlity operates.

{a) Financing arrangements

(b)

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facil

ities at the end of the reparling period:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Working capital facility

1,459.86

954.84

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities,

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounied cash

not significant:

flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is

31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives

Borrowing (including current maturities of non-current debt) - - - 1.03 1.03
Lease Liabilities 4.43 535 6.42 691 23.12
Current borrawings 370.45 - - - 370.46
Trade payables 1,386 65 - - - 1,396.65
Other financial liabilities 24,16 14.14 - - 38.30
Total 1,795.70 19.50 6.42 7.94 1,829.56
31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives

Borrowing (including current maturities of non-current debt) - - - 685.80 635.80
Leasa Liabilities 361 4.43 5.36 13.33 26,73
Current borrowings 635.85 - - = 635.85
Trade payables 940.79 - - - 940.79
Other finarcial liabilities 18.43 2.51 - - 20.94
Total 1,598.68 6.94 5.36 709.13 2,320.11

C.3 Market risk

(a]

Foreign currency risk

‘The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk in the normal course of its business. Multiple currency exposures arise from commercial transactions like sales and
purchases, recognized as financial assels and liabilities (monetary items). Certain transactions of the Company act as nalural hedge as a portion of both assets and liabilities
are denominated in similar foreign currencies. For the remaining exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Company adapls the policy of selective hedging based on risk
perceplion of management.

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount Foreign Amount Foreign currency
(4] currency (%)
Trade payables
uso 464,51 5.54 203.43 268

‘Foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis has been performed on the foreign currency exposures in the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities at the reparting
date, net of derivalive contracts for hedging those exposures, Reasonably possible changes are based on an analysis of hisloric currency volatility, together with any relevant
assumplions regarding near-term future volatility,

The impact on the Company's profit due to changes in the foreign currency exchange rates are given below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
USD Sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 1.82% (31 March 2022- 2.27%) 0.10 0.08
INR/USD - decrease by 1.82% (31 March 2022- 2.27%) (0.10) (0.06)

(This space has been intentionally left bianik)
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(b) Interest rate risk
(i) Financial liabilities

The Company's policy is to minmise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on exiernal financing, At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company is exposed to changes
in interest rates through bank borrowings carrying variable inlerest rates. The Company's investments in fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates,

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposire of the Company tointerest rate risk:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Variable rate borrowing 370.46 635.85
Fixed rate borrowing - 69580
Total borrowings 370.48 1,331.65
Sensitivity
Below is the sensilivity of profit or loss to changes in interest rates.
Parliculars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest sensitivity*
Interest rates — increase by 50 basis points 1.85 3.18
Interest rales — decrease by 50 basis points {1.85) (3.18)

* Holding alf other variables constant

(i) Financial assets
The Gompany's deposits with banks are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rale instruments. The

y are, therefore,

since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuste because of a change in market interest rates.

{c) Price risk
(i) Exposure

, not subject to interest rale risk as defined in Ind AS 107,

The company is in the business of contract manufacturing wherein any increase in the price is passed to the customer and hence the Company is not exposed to significant

price risk,

38 Capital Management

The Company's capital management objeclives are to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The Comparly manages its capiial structure and makas adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk cha
order 1o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shargholders,

assels to reduce debt,

Gearing ratio

racteristics of the underlying asssts. In
return capilal to shareholders, issue new shares or sell

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total borrowings 371.49 1,331.65
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 37.13 14.14
Net debt 334.36 1,317.51
Total equity 956.85 896.10
Equity and net debt 1,291.21 2,213.61
Gearing ratio 25.90% 59.52%

(This space has been inlentionally left biank)
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39, Tax expense

Particulars

Tax expense:

Recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current tax

Tax earlier years

Deferred tax

Tax impact on OCj

Total tax expense

a) Reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the latest statutory enacted tax rate in India to income tax expense reported is as follows:

Profil before tax
Income tax using the Company's domeslic tax rale * (refer note below)
Expected tax expense [A]

Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense
Effect of non-deductible expenses

Qihers (including impact on other comprehensive income)

Total adjustments [B]

Actual tax expense [C=A+B]

* Domestic lax rate applicable to the Company has been computed as follows
Base lax rate d

Surcharge (% of tax)

Cess (% of lax)

Applicable rate of tax

Note;

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
21.88 2252
0.17 (1.20)
(1.22) 1.02
034 (0.20)
21.16 22.14
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
80.58 84.25
25.17% 25.17%
20.28 21.20
0.92 243
(0.04) (1.49)
0.88 0.94
21,18 2214
2% 22%
10% 10%
4% 4%
2517% 25147%

1. The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 {2019 Tax Ordinance) provides the Company with an aption to move to a lower tax rate of 25.17% sccompanied with immediate expiry of carry
farward balance of Minimum Allemalive Tax (MAT) credit and certain other concessional tax rate benefils enjoyed by the Company presently. The Company has reviewed the implications of 2019

Tax Crdinance on its tax liability for the year and has decided to shift to be taxed as Per new regime.

b) Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2023 :-

Particulars As at Impact due to Recognised in  Recognised in profit As at

31 March 2022 change in tax rate OcCi and loss 31 March 2023
Deferred tax liability consists of:
Properly, plant and equipment and intangible assels (20.44) - - {0.11) (20.54)
Lease liability {0.39) - - 039 -
Deferred tax assets consists of:
Employee benefits 3.38 - (0.34) 0.96 4.00
Provision for credit losses on financial assets 0.25 - - (0.02) 0.23
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) (17.20) - (0.34) 1.22 (16.31)
b) Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2022 :-

: As at Impact due to Recog din Recegnised in profit As at
Particulars 31March 2021 change in tax rate oci and loss 31 March 2022
Deferred tax liability consists of:

Properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets (20.55) - - 0.11 (20.44)
Lease liability “ - - (0.39) (0.39)
Deferred tax assets consists of:

Employee benefits 382 - 0.20 (0.84) 3.38
Provision for credit losses on financial assets 0.35 - - (0.10) 0.25
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) (16.38) - 0.20 (1.02) (17.20)

40. Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of "pharmaceuticals products”, Hence as per, chiefl operaling decision maker, the sale of pharmaceuticals products has been considered as
a single operaling segment per Ind AS 108 ‘Operaling Segments’ and accordingly disclosures have been limited to singie operating segment. The revenues of the Company are enlirely domestic,

hence revenues from custamers are only in one geographical area i.e, with in India. In current year, from five cush S

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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41, Corporate social responsibility

As per section 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013, a Company, meeling the applicability threshoid, needs to spend at least 2% of its aversge net profil for the immediately preceding three financial
year on corporate social respansibility(CSR) activities. The CSR commitiee has been formed by the Company as per the Act and the Company has identified areas of "Pramoting Education and

healthcare Projects” for CER activities.

The Company has spent amount on corporale social responsibility expenses as below:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unspent balance as at 31 March 2022 - -
Gross amount required to be spent during the year 367 3.24
Amount spent during the year

- Cansiruction/acquisition of any Assat - -

- On purposes olher than above 5.46 3.24
Overspent balance as at 31 March 2023 1.79 -

42. Disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 due to micro enterprises and small enterprises

Particulars Yearended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i} The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplisr as at the end of sach accounting year
- Principal amount due 31.92 25.73
- Interest amount due - =
(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the suppiier beyond the appointed - -
day during each accounling year
(ii) The amaount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have bean paid but beyond the appointed day during - -
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are - -
aclually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disall e as a deductible expenditure under section 23,
43. Exceptional item
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Provision for dimunition in the invesiment done in Medibox Digilal Salutions Private Limited

140.00

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2022, the Gompany had made an assessment of the recoverabile value of investment in its subsidiaries taking into account the past business performance,
prevailing business conditions and revised expectations of the future performance. The recoverable value of invesiment in Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limited was the value in use delermined as
per discounted cash flow method. Basis the recoverable value computed and the future plans of the Company, additonal provision of Rs. 140 millions was crealed in the financial year ended 31 March
2022. The carrying valus on this investment in books as on 31 March 2023 is NIL [31 march 2022: NIL].

44, Lease

a) The Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the Right-of-use assels at ils carrying amount, but
discounted at the lesses’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application,

b) The weighled average lessee's Incremental horrowing rale applied to the lease liabiliies on 1 April 2021 was 9% p.a. For building taken during the previous year borrowing rate applied is 7% p.a.

c) The table below describes the nature of the Company's leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet:

As at 31 March 2023

Category of asset No of right-of- | Range of remaining | Average remaining
use assets term (year) lease erm (year)

Land 1.00 73.00 73.00

Building 1.00 4.00 4.00

As at 31 March 2032

Category of asset

No of right-of-

Range of remaining

Average remaining

use assets term (year) tlease erm (year)
Land 1.00 74.00 74,00
Building 1.00 5.00 5.00

There are no leases enlered by the Company which have any exlension, termination or purchase oplion and the payment of lease rentals is nol based on variable payments,

(Thiz spacs has been infentionally left blank)
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d) Amount recognised in balance sheet and statement of profit and loss:

Particulars Category of Right-of-use assets
Land Building Total
Balance as at 1 April 2021 18.35 - 18.35
Add: Additions during the year - 28.74 28.74
Less: Deprecialion charged on the right-of-use assels 0.25 0.48 0.73
Balance as at 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 18.10 28.28 46.36
Less: Depreciation charged on the right-of-use assels 0.24 575 5.99
Balance as at 31 March 2023 17.88 2251 40.37
e) Lease payment not recognised as lease liability
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Expenses relafing to short lerm leases(included in other expenses) 12.09 £.06
12.09 6.06
d) Future minimum lease payment
Minimum Lease payment As at 31 March 202
Lease payment Finance charges Net Present Value
Within 1 year 591 1.48 4.43
1-3 year 13.65 1.87 11.78
Mare than 3 year 7.15 0.24 6.91
26.71 3.60 23.12
== =]

Minimum Lease payment

As at 31 March 2022

Lease payment

Finance charges

Net Present Value

Within 1 year 537 1.76 361
1-3 year 12.41 262 8.79
More than 3 year 14.30 0.93 13.33
32.08 5.35 26.73
e ————

45. Ageing of trade receivabies and trade payables as per Schedule 1l

a) Trade receivables ageing
The table below analyse the outslanding trade recsivabies:

31 March 2023

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undispuled rade receivables. considered good 1,238.07 350.25 - 0.14 - 1,596.46
{ii) Disputed trade receivabies- considered good - - - 3.54 3.54
{iif) Disputed trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - {0.92) (0.92)
1,235.07 360.25 - 0.14 2.62 1,560.08
31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed trade receivabies- considersd good 2,081.56 70.27 0.28 005 0.31 2,152.47
(ii) Dispuled trade receivables- considered good - - - - 3.80 3.80
(inf) Disputed trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - (1.01) (1.01)
2,081.56 70.27 0.28 0.05 3.10 2,155.26
b) Trade payables ageing
The tabie below analyse the outslanding trade payabies:
31 March 2023
Particulars Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME 31.92 - - - 31.92
Others 1,354.54 3.91 0.15 0.08 1,3568.68
Unbilled dues 6.05 = 3 - 6.05
1,392.51 3.91 0.15 0.08 1,396.65
31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payments.
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME 2573 - - - 25.73
Others ans.51 3.90 082 - 911.23
Unbilled dues 2.83 - - - 3.83
936.07 3.90 0.82 - 940.79

(This space has been inlentionally left blank)
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46, Ratio Disclosures

Particulars Numerator Denominator Current year Previous year % Variance
Current ratio’ Current Assels Current liab 1.35 1.80 -34%
Debt - Equity ralio® Tolal debt Sharshalders equity 0.39) 1.48 ~280%
- ’ ’ Eamings available for| : =
Debt service coverage ralio debt service Debl Service 2.30) 288 -25%
Net Profils after laxes,
Return on equity ratio? — Preference Dividend|’"*'29% 6.24% -B%| 240%
9 Hany) Shareholder’s Equity Y !
Inventary lurnover rafio Cosl of goods sold Average Inveniory 9.02 9.17] -2%
. . 5 Avg. Accounts
i bl =
Trade receivables tumover ratio Net Credit Sales Receivable 3.47 418 20%
Trade payables tumover ratio’ Net Credit Purchases ';;:;:?:s Trade 5.04 8.41 -27%
Net capital turnover ratio’ 2 Nel Sales Working Capital 10,37 4.5 57%
Net profil ratio ** Net Profil Net Sales 0.01 (0.01) 247%
: i Earning before| Capital Employed
Retum on capilal emplayed intarest arid thxss 0.13 0.13 1%
Return on invesiment® Profit afler tax Investment 0.04 {D.04) 178%!

Reason for varance:

1. During the current year, sale of raded goods has increased by around 21% where as operational cost in manufacturing is lowered as compared to previous year due to which current ratio and
trade payable turnover ratio has decreased,

2. Debt equity ralio has besn decreased on account of repayment of loan from parent enlity during the current reporting period and an increase in shareholder's equity is on acocunt of nel praft
generated during the current period as compared to net loss incured during the previous year thal leads fo increase in return on equity and return on investment.

47. Other Statutory information:

(a)The Company do nol have any Benami properly, where any proceeding has been iniliaied or pending against the Company far holding any Benami prapery,

(b) The Company do nol have any lransactions with companies struck off.

(c) The Company do nol have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(d) The Company have nol traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{e) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign entiiies (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantes, security or
the like to or on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries

() The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) that the
Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities idenfified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uttimate Beneficiaries),

(g) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thal has been surmendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any olher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(h) The Company is not deciared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

As per our report of even date attached
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Charfered Acwunlanlisk 2y, Maxcure Nutravedics Limited
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